PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE BYLAWS

In accordance with Article XII of the Bylaws of the Aerospace Medical Association, the following proposed changes to the bylaws are printed herein. They will be voted upon at the next Annual Business Meeting to be held Tuesday, April 26, 2016. The meeting is open and all members are encouraged to attend (no lunch purchase is necessary to participate in the meeting). The omissions are listed as strikethroughs. The additions are italicized and underlined.

ARTICLE **. CORPORATE FORUM

Add after ARTICLE III. MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1. Corporate Forum.

- <u>A. Titles: The Corporate Members shall constitute the Corporate Forum.</u>
- B. Structure: The Corporate Forum may have an internal governance structure of its choosing, with officers and procedures appropriate to its activities.
- C. Representation: The Corporate Forum shall choose one of its members to represent the Forum at Council meetings. The representative shall serve as a liaison between the Council and the Forum. The Corporate Forum is aligned under the Vice President of Member Services.
- D. Relationship to Corporate and Sustaining Membership Committee: The Corporate Forum will work in coordination with the Corporate and Sustaining Membership Committee as described in Article XI of these Bylaws.

SECTION 2. Membership.

All members of the Corporate Forum shall be Corporate Members as determined in Article II of these Bylaws.

SECTION 3. Activities.

A. Forum Events: The Corporate Forum will plan and conduct an Advisory event, in coordination with Council, at the Annual Scientific Meeting. The purpose of the Advisory will be an exchange of information and goals between the Association leadership and the Forum to facilitate good relations and advances in the field of Aerospace Medicine and Human Performance. The Forum may also sponsor a speaker or other similar event(s) for the general Association membership.

B. Forum Budget: The Association budget will consider and plan for reasonable expenses in connection with Forum events.

ARTICLE VII. COUNCIL OF THE AEROSPACE MEDICAL ASSOCIATION AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE. SECTION 2. Membership of the Council.

Membership of the Council shall consist of the President, President-Elect, the immediate Past President, the four Vice Presidents, the Secretary, the Treasurer, 12 elective members, one member selected by each of the Constituent Organizations, one member selected by the Fellows group, one member selected by the Associate Fellows Group, the Editor-in-Chief of the Association's official journal (ex officio member without vote; appointed by the President and approved by Council), a representative from the Corporate Forum (ex officio member without vote), and a student or resident representative selected by the Aerospace Medicine Student Resident Organization. The Executive Director shall be an ex officio member without vote. No such elected member....

Rationale: These two changes cover the formation of the Corporate Forum as a replacement/evolution for the Corporate

and Sustaining Affiliate. The Affiliate category does not recognize the unique role the Corporate members play in the Association, leading to some inconsistencies in the way Affiliates appear to function and in the handling of Affiliate dues. The development of the Corporate Forum is a formalization of the unique relationship between the Association and its Corporate members. The changes also allow for a liaison from the Forum to be a non-voting member of Council.

ARTICLE XI. COMMITTEES.

SECTION 3. Standing Committee Functions.

M. Nominating Committee: Elected officer and the elective members of the Council shall be nominated by a Nominating Committee made up of the five most recent living Past Presidents of the Association and a representative selected from each Constituent Organization of the Aerospace Medical Association. The immediate Past President shall serve as a member of the Nominating Committee for a one year term, and shall become Chairperson of that committee in the subsequent year. The President shall appoint another Past President to serve as chair if the immediate Past President is unable to or unwilling to discharge the associated responsibilities. A Chairperson or any Past President who is unable or unwilling to discharge their associated responsibilities shall be replaced by the President with another Past President who will assume seniority of the person replaced and will be appointed by the President. The Nominating Committee shall meet at least annually in advance of the opening ceremony of the annual meeting conduct its activities by electronic communication. Each individual nominated shall have been approved by at least a simple majority vote of the Nominating Committee members-present at their meeting. The report of the Nominating Committee shall be made prior to the Annual Scientific Meeting as stipulated in the Policies and Procedures Manual and orally and shall also be made available to members in writing at the opening ceremony of the annual meeting Annual Scientific Meeting. Any member may offer Additional additional nominations, including name of nominee and office for which nominated, may be offered from the floor at the annual business meeting; however, the Executive Director must be provided written notice of the nomination no less than twenty-four hours before the annual business meeting by a member upon three hours advance written notice to the Executive Director. Such nominations must be accompanied by a petition of at least 2% of the active members of the Association and must be accepted by a two-thirds majority vote of members attending the annual business meeting, before the nominee can be a candidate in a vote for a named position.

Rationale: Redundancy is reduced by the early deletions. Clarification is provided regarding the process to replace a Chairperson or any Past President who cannot fulfill their responsibilities. The need for a face-to-face meeting is obviated by the ability to electronically communicate. The Policies and Procedures Manual shall stipulate the advisability to meet during the annual meeting to allow additional communication as needed. The additional notification time for delivery of written notice of a floor nomination is needed to provide adequate membership status of petition signatories and agenda adjustments (separation of voting motions) as necessary to provide for an orderly and efficient Annual Business Meeting. The Policies and Procedures Manual will address the issue of more than one can-

didate for an elected office being present during voting, possibly by excusal of such candidates during that voting process.

ARTICLE XI. COMMITTEES.

SECTION 3. Standing Committee Functions.

P. Resolutions Committee: Resolutions may be proposed to the Resolutions Committee by individual members, by standing and special committees, Constituent Organizations, by the Executive Committee, and by the Council. Proposed resolutions that have been reviewed and coordinated by the Resolutions Committee shall be submitted to Council. If disapproved by Council, the resolution will be returned to the Resolutions Committee for further review and coordination. and, if If approved by Council, the reso-<u>lution</u> will be presented to the Association membership. Association membership will be notified by electronic means that a pProposed resolutions has will been published on the Association's website for a period of at least 60 days to offer members the opportunity for review and comment. Members of the Association will be notified by electronic means when resolutions are posted on the website for review and when posted for a vote. Members may submit comments to the Resolutions Committee within the 60-day comment period in any form, via electronic means, by letter, or in person during any meeting of the Association. Comments received from members may be incorporated into the proposed resolution by the Resolutions Committee, after which the revised resolution shall again be posted on the Association's website and resubmitted to Council. For a After final vote-review and approval by Council, members the draft resolution will be posted on the Association's website for a vote by the membership. Council Association membership shall have final approval of resolutions. Processing and vVoting on resolutions by the Council-Association members can be performed remotely by electronic means or in person during Council meetings Annual Business Meetings of the Association. Electronic voting on proposed resolutions will be open for a period of at least 30 days. A quorum of 100 Association members is necessary for a vote, and a A two thirds-majority vote of the full Council of those voting members is required for final approval of a proposed resolution. *Voting will not be terminated prematurely* when a quorum is achieved but will remain available for the entire 30-day period. If a quorum is not met at the end of the 30-day period, the voting period may be extended up to an additional 30 days.

Rationale: Resolutions present an agreed upon position by the Association. Electronic forums and online voting now make review of proposed resolutions and voting by membership a reality. This change allows for voting on resolutions by the membership outside of the Annual Business Meeting, adding a minimum required period for voting and specifying the required quorum.

ARTICLE XI. COMMITTEES.

SECTION 1. Standing Committees.

A. There shall be the following standing committees:

(1) Aerospace Human Performance, (2) Aerospace Safety, (3) Air Transport Medicine, (4) Arrangements, (5) Awards, (6) Bylaws, (7) Communications, (8) Corporate and Sustaining Membership, (9) Education and Training, (10) Finance, (11) Global Liaison and Outreach, (12) History and Archives, (12) International Activities, (13) Membership, (14) Nominating, (15) Registration, (16) Resolutions, (17) Science and Technology, and (18) Scientific Program.

SECTION 3. Standing Committee Functions.

L. International Activities Committee: This committee shall be responsible for initiation, coordination, and promotion of the goals of the Association international members, constituent and affiliated organizations, while addressing their concerns. The committee will also promote cooperation and understanding in the field of aerospace medicine among international members, constituent and affiliated organizations.

K. Global Liaison and Outreach Committee: This committee shall be responsible for initiation, coordination, and promotion of the Association's global perspectives, namely: 1) To promote coordination, cooperation, and harmonization of efforts associated with global aerospace medicine and human performance challenges, 2) To promote the importance of and opportunities in aerospace medicine and human performance in each country or region, 3) To identify and promote global best practices in aerospace medicine and human performance research and applications, and 4) To strengthen the connection between AsMA and its global membership, its global constituents and affiliated organizations.

Rationale: This motion changes the name of the International Activities Committee to better reflect its global perspective and to better delineate the goals of the Committee. The History and Archives Committee would be re-lettered as L. History and Archives Committee.

Upcoming FAA AME Seminars

Dates	Location	Seminar Type
Jan. 29-31, 2016	Houston, TX	Refresher
Mar. 21-25, 2016	Oklahoma City, OK	Basic
April 25-29, 2016	Atlantic City, NJ	AsMA
June 20-24, 2016	Oklahoma City, OK	Basic

For more information on these or to register, please visit the FAA's AME Seminar page: http://www.faa.gov/other_visit/aviation_ industry/designees_delegations/designee_types/ame/seminar_

PLEASE NOTE: The only FAA seminar AsMA takes registrations for is the one held in conjunction with our annual meeting in May.

Future AsMA Annual Scientific Meetings

April 24-28, 2016: Harrah's Resort; Atlantic City, NJ April 29-May 4, 2017: Sheraton Denver Downtown; Denver, CO May 6-10, 2018; Hilton Anatole Hotel; Dallas, TX May 5-9, 2019; Rio All Suites Hotel; Las Vegas, NV

Visit Us on Social Media!

Twitter: https://twitter.com/aero_med

Facebook: www.facebook.com/AerospaceMedicalAssociation LinkedIn: https://www.linkedin.com/company/2718542?trk=tyah& trkInfo=tarld:1404740611720,tas:Aerospace Medical,idx:1-1-1

Ever Upward

For the latest AsMA News please read our Newsletter "Ever Upward" online at: http://www.asma.org/newsevents/asma-news-archive/newsletters